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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

To the Participant of MCC SimpleFinance LLC 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of MCC SimpleFinance LLC (the “Company”), 

which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the statements 
of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial statements in the Russian Federation and with the International Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards), and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requirements in the 
Russian Federation and the International Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the  financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 



MCC SimpleFinance LLC 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Page 3 

5 

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is: 

Samsonov D.A. 

JSC “KPMG” 

Moscow, Russia 

31 July 2020 
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1 Introduction 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 for MCC SimpleFinance LLC (the “Company”). 

The Company was established in 2015 and domiciled in the Russian Federation. The Company is limited 
liability microcredit company and was set up in accordance with the legislation of the Russian Federation.  

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 SF Holdings Company PLC (Cyprus) controlled 100% 
of shares of the Company. 

The shareholders of the SF Holdings Company PLC as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are 
as follows: 

Name 

Share 

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 
   
Abacus (Nominees) Limited 62.24% 62.24% 
SBI Ventures Two Co., Ltd. 18.60% 18.60% 
Non-resident individuals (6) 9.52% 9.52% 
FinTech Business Innovation LPS 5.84% 5.84% 
Abacus (Cyprus) Limited 3.55% 3.55% 
C&L Nominees Limited 0.25% 0.25% 
   

The Company has no ultimate controlling party. 

Principal activity. The Company’s principal business activity is the issuance of loans and factoring 
financing of small and medium-sized enterprises and individuals. The Company is included into the 
Russian register of microfinance organizations since 2015. 

The Company offers the following types of loans: 

• loans for financing of working capital for legal entities and individual entrepreneurs; 
• loans for investment purposes for legal entities and individual entrepreneurs; 
• factoring for legal entities and individual entrepreneurs selling products under grace period for 

payment; 
• loans for secure tender proposal for legal entities and individual entrepreneurs participating in 

government tenders and auctions; 
• loans secured by real estate for individuals, legal entities and individual entrepreneurs. 

Registered address and place of business. The Company’s registered address and place of business 
is 12, Krasnopresnenskaya Embankment, office building 1, premise 1d, room 60, Moscow, Russian 
Federation, 123610. 

2 Operating Environment of the Company 

Russian Federation. The Russian Federation displays certain characteristics of an emerging market. Its 
economy is particularly sensitive to oil and gas prices. The legal, tax and regulatory frameworks continue 
to develop and are subject to frequent changes and varying interpretations (Note 18). The Russian 
economy continues to be negatively impacted by ongoing political tension in the region and international 
sanctions against certain Russian companies and individuals. Firm oil prices, low unemployment and 
rising wages supported a modest growth of the economy in 2019. The operating environment has a 
significant impact on the Company’s operations and financial position. Management is taking necessary 
measures to ensure sustainability of the Company’s operations. However, the future effects of the current 
economic situation are difficult to predict, and management’s current expectations and estimates could 
differ from actual results. 

Basis of preparation. These financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS under the 
historical cost convention, as modified by the initial recognition of financial instruments at fair value. The 
principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 
These policies are consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. 

These financial statements are presented in Russian Roubles ("RUB”) and are rounded to the nearest 
thousand. 
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Changes in presentation. During preparation of financial statements as at 31 December 2019 the 
Management of the Company decided to change presentation of certain reporting items for better 
presentation of the financial statements.  

The following changes in presentation of the Statement of Comprehensive Income were performed: 
 2018 (as 

previously 
reported) Adjustment 2018 

    Income from tender loans 271 952 (271 952) - 
Income from factoring 159 882 (159 882) - 
Income from secured loans 116 233 (116 233) - 
Income from other loans 62 611 (62 611) - 
Income from deposits 15 662 (15 662) - 
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method - 626 340 626 340 
Broker and agency fees (75 279) 75 279 - 
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method - (75 279) (75 279) 
    
     551 061 - 551 061 
    
    Other income from main activity 14 949 (14 949) - 
Other similar income - 14 949 14 949 
    
     14 949 - 14 949 
    
    Factoring platform fee (4 942) 4 942 - 
Tender loans platform fee (32 392) 32 392 - 
Selling expenses - (37 334) (37 334) 
    
     (37 334) - (37 334) 
    
    Net (loss) income from exchange differences - (219 551) (219 551) 
Net (loss) income from operations in foreign currency (216 154) 219 551 3 397 
    
     (216 154) - (216 154) 
    

Tender loans platform fees are calculated based on several factors, including quantity and volume of 
respective loans issued which is adjusted for certain limits and additional conditions. Management applies 
judgment to determine whether these expenses are part of effective interest rate. Previously loans issued 
and fees demonstrated significant correlation, and the fees were presented as part of interest income 
calculated using the effective interest rate. In 2019, the above patterns changed due to further growth in 
portfolio volumes, as well certain changes in the fees’ terms, and the Management revised its judgment 
to exclude these expenses from interest income. Starting from 2019, these expenses are presented within 
selling expenses. Management believes that the new presentation provides better presentation of 
economic substance of these transactions as loan portfolio maintenance expenses. The comparative 
figures have been revised accordingly. 

The following changes in presentation of the Statement of Financial Position were performed: 
 31 December 

2018 (as 
previously 
reported) Adjustment 

31 December 
2018 

    Accounts receivable 23 620 (13 785) 9 835 
Current income tax receivables - 13 785 13 785 
    
     23 620 - 23 620 
    

The following changes in presentation of the Statement of Cash Flows were performed to present other 
types of income (including penalties and fines received) separately from interest payments: 

 2018 (as 
previously 
reported) Adjustment 2018 

    CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITY:    
Interests received from loans issued 463 796 (8 128) 455 668 
Net cash inflow from other business operations - 8 128  8 128 
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Financial instruments – key measurement terms. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The best evidence of fair value is price in an active market. An active market is one 
in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide 
pricing information on an ongoing basis.  

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal 
of a financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction 
had not taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees 
acting as selling agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities 
exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums or discounts, 
financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs. 

Amortised cost (“AC”) is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognised at initial recognition 
less any principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any allowance for 
expected credit losses. Accrued interest includes amortisation of transaction costs deferred at initial 
recognition and of any premium or discount to maturity amount using the effective interest method. 
Accrued interest income and accrued interest expense, including both accrued coupon and amortised 
discount or premium (including fees deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are 
included in the carrying values of related items in the statement of financial position. 

The effective interest method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the 
relevant period, so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying 
amount. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or 
receipts (excluding future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 
period, if appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument. 

The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest repricing 
date, except for the premium or discount, which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified 
in the instrument, or other variables that are not reset to market rates. Such premiums or discounts are 
amortised over the expected life of the instrument. The present value calculation includes all fees paid or 
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. 

Financial instruments – initial recognition. Financial instruments at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair 
value. All other financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value adjusted for transaction costs.  

Fair value at initial recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial 
recognition is only recorded if there is a difference between fair value and transaction price which can be 
evidenced by other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or by a valuation 
technique whose inputs include only data from observable markets.  

After the initial recognition, an expected credit loss (ECL) allowance is recognised for financial assets 
measured at AC, resulting in an immediate accounting loss. 

Financial assets – classification and subsequent measurement – measurement categories. The 
Company classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories: FVTPL, FVOCI and AC. 
The classification and subsequent measurement of debt financial assets depends on: (i) the Company’s 
business model for managing the related assets portfolio and (ii) the cash flow characteristics of the asset. 

Financial assets – classification and subsequent measurement – business model. The business 
model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows – whether the 
Company’s objective is: (i) solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets (“hold to collect 
contractual cash flows”,) or (ii) to collect both the contractual cash flows and the cash flows arising from 
the sale of assets (“hold to collect contractual cash flows and sell”) or, if neither of (i) and (ii) is applicable, 
the financial assets are classified as part of “other” business model and measured at FVTPL. 

Business model is determined for a group of assets (on a portfolio level) based on all relevant evidence 
about the activities that the Company undertakes to achieve the objective set out for the portfolio available 
at the date of the assessment. Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model 
include the purpose and composition of a portfolio, past experience on how the cash flows for the 
respective assets were collected and how risks are assessed and managed. Refer to Note 4 for critical 
judgements applied by the Company in determining the business models for its financial assets. 
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Financial assets – classification and subsequent measurement – cash flow characteristics. Where 
the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to hold contractual cash flows 
and sell, the Company assesses whether the cash flows represent solely payments of principal and 
interest (“SPPI”). The SPPI assessment is performed on initial recognition of an asset and it is not 
subsequently reassessed. Refer to Note 4 for critical judgements applied by the Company in performing 
the SPPI test for its financial assets. 

Financial assets – reclassification. Financial instruments are reclassified only when the business model 
for managing the portfolio as a whole changes. The reclassification has a prospective effect and takes 
place from the beginning of the first reporting period that follows after the change in the business model. 
The Company did not change its business model during the current and comparative period and did not 
make any reclassifications. 

Financial assets impairment – ECL allowance. The Company assesses, on a forward-looking basis, 
the ECL for debt instruments measured at AC. The measurement of ECL reflects: (i) an unbiased and 
probability weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, (ii) time value 
of money and (iii) all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost and 
effort about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future conditions. 

Debt instruments measured at AC are presented in the statement of financial position net of the allowance 
for ECL. 

The Company applies a three-stage model for impairment, based on changes in credit quality since initial 
recognition. A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in Stage 1. 
Financial assets in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL 
that results from default events possible within the next 12 months or until contractual maturity, if shorter 
(“12 Months ECL”). If the Company identifies a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial 
recognition, the asset is transferred to Stage 2 and its ECL is measured based on ECL on a lifetime basis, 
that is up until contractual maturity but considering expected prepayments, if any (“Lifetime ECL” or Stage 
2). Refer to Note 17 for a description of how the Company determines when a SICR has occurred. If the 
Company determines that a financial asset is credit-impaired, the asset is transferred to Stage 3 and its 
ECL is measured as a Lifetime ECL. The Company’s definition of credit impaired assets and definition of 
default is explained in Note 17. For financial assets that are purchased or originated credit-impaired 
(“POCI Assets”), the ECL is always measured as a Lifetime ECL. Note 17 provides information about 
inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL, including an explanation of how 
the Company incorporates forward-looking information in the ECL models. 

Financial assets – write-off. Financial assets are written-off, in whole or in part, when the Company 
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. The write-off represents a derecognition event. The Company may write-off financial assets that 
are still subject to enforcement activity when the Company seeks to recover amounts that are contractually 
due, however, there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. 

Financial assets – derecognition. The Company derecognises financial assets when (a) the assets are 
redeemed or the rights to cash flows from the assets otherwise expired or (b) the Company has transferred 
the rights to the cash flows from the financial assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement 
while (i) also transferring substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (ii) neither 
transferring nor retaining substantially all risks and rewards of ownership, but not retaining control. Control 
is retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an 
unrelated third party without needing to impose restrictions on the sale. 

Financial assets – modification. The Company sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the 
contractual terms of the financial assets. For each modification, the Company performs a quantitative and 
qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is substantial, i.e. whether the cash flows of the original 
financial asset and the modified or replaced financial asset are substantially different.  

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the modification 
is usually to maximize recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate a new asset with 
substantially different terms. If the Company plans to modify a financial asset in a way that would result in 
forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset should be written off before 
the modification takes place. This approach impacts the result of the quantitative evaluation and means 
that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in such cases.  
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The qualitative factors, which the Company analyses to conclude whether the modification is substantial 
or not are (a) the change of the currency of the financial asset and (b) change in collateral or other credit 
enhancement.  

If, based on the results of the evaluation, a change in the terms of the loan is deemed material, the 
Company derecognizes the original financial asset and recognizes the new asset at fair value. 

The date of the revision of the terms is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the purpose of 
calculating subsequent impairment, including the determination of the fact of a significant increase in credit 
risk.  

The Company also evaluates whether the new loan or debt instrument meets the criterion of making 
payments solely against the principal amount of the debt and interest. Any discrepancies between the 
carrying amount of the initial asset that has been derecognized and the fair value of the new significantly 
modified asset are recognized in profit or loss if the substance of the difference does not apply to equity 
transactions with owners. 

Financial liabilities – measurement categories. Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently 
measured at AC, except for (i) financial liabilities at FVTPL: this classification is applied to derivatives, 
financial liabilities held for trading (e.g. short positions in securities), contingent consideration recognised 
by an acquirer in a business combination and other financial liabilities designated as such at initial 
recognition and (ii) financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments. 

Financial liabilities – derecognition. Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished 
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires). 

Cash and cash equivalents and Deposits. Cash and cash equivalents are items which are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, free balances on the settlement bank accounts, 
deposits and funds in credit institutions with original maturity of not more than 30 days unencumbered with 
any contractual liabilities. Deposits and funds in credit institutions with original maturity of more than 30 
days are included into Deposits. Cash and cash equivalents and Deposits are carried at AC. 

Loans issued, accounts receivable and factoring receivables. Loans issued, accounts receivable and 
factoring receivables are recorded when the Company advances money to purchase or originate an 
unquoted non-derivative receivable from a customer due on fixed or determinable dates and has no 
intention of trading the receivable. Loans issued, advances receivable and factoring receivables are 
carried at amortised cost. 

ECL allowance is determined based on the forward-looking ECL models. Note 17 provides information 
about inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL, including an explanation of 
how the Company incorporates forward-looking information in the ECL models. 

Repossessed collateral. Repossessed collateral represents non-financial assets acquired by the 
Company in settlement of overdue loans. The assets are initially recognised at fair value when acquired 
and included in premises and equipment, other financial assets or investment properties within other 
assets depending on their nature and the Company's intention in respect of recovery of these assets, and 
are subsequently remeasured and accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for these 
categories of assets. 

Fixed assets. Fixed assets are recognized at their cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for 
impairment, where required.  

At the end of each reporting period management assesses whether there is any indication of impairment 
of fixed assets. If any such indication exists, management estimates the recoverable amount, which is 
determined as the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The carrying amount 
is reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss for the year. 
An impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the asset’s value in use or fair value less costs to sell. 

Gains and losses on disposals determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount are recognised 
in profit or loss for the year (within administrative and other expenses). 
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Depreciation. Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their 
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The annual depreciation rates are as follows: 
 Annual rates 
  
Buildings and structures 2% 
Furniture and computer equipment 25% 
Intangible assets 15%-33.3% 
   

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Company would currently obtain from 
disposal of the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the 
condition expected at the end of its useful life. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, 
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 

Intangible assets. The Company’s intangible assets have definite useful lives and primarily include 
capitalized computer software. Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the 
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. Development costs that are directly 
associated with identifiable and unique software controlled by the Company are recorded as intangible 
assets if the inflow of incremental economic benefits exceeding costs is probable. Capitalised costs 
include staff costs of the software development team and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. 
All other costs associated with computer software, e.g. its maintenance, are expensed when incurred. 
Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over the useful life of intangible assets. 

Accounting for leases by the Company as a lessee. The Company leases office premises. All lease 
contracts are short-term leases. The Company applies recognition exemptions to short-term contracts. 
Related lease payments are charged to profit or loss for the year (rental expense) on a straight-line basis 
over the period of the lease. 

Loans and borrowings. Loans and borrowings initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct 
transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortized cost. In case of fair value adjustment 
such adjustment is recognised in Additionally-paid-in capital for loans and borrowings from related parties 
and in Net (loss) income from financial instruments at fair value for other loans and borrowings. 

Income tax. Income tax is provided for in the financial statements in accordance with the legislation 
enacted or substantively enacted as at the end of the reporting period. 

The income tax charge comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognised in profit or loss for the 
year, except if it is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity because it relates to 
transactions that are also recognised, in the same or a different period, in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity. 

Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of 
taxable profits or losses for the current and prior periods. Taxable profits or losses are based on estimates 
if financial statements are authorised prior to filing relevant tax returns. Taxes other than on income are 
recorded within administrative and other operating expenses. 

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards and 
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for consolidated financial reporting purposes. 

In accordance with the initial recognition exemption, deferred taxes are not recorded for temporary 
differences on initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business combination 
if the transaction, when initially recorded, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit. Deferred tax 
balances are measured at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, 
which are expected to apply to the period when the temporary differences will reverse or the tax loss carry 
forwards will be utilised.  

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded only to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductions can 
be utilised. 
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Uncertain tax positions. The Company’s uncertain tax positions are reassessed by management at the 
end of each reporting period. Liabilities are recorded for income tax positions that are determined by 
management as more likely than not to result in additional taxes being levied if the positions were to be 
challenged by the tax authorities. The assessment is based on the interpretation of tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and any known court or other 
rulings on such issues. Liabilities for penalties, interest and taxes other than on income are recognised 
based on management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations at the end of 
the reporting period. 

Provisions for future expenses. Provisions for future expenses are recognized when the Company has 
legal constructive obligation that has arisen as a result of past events and there is a high probability that 
the Company will have to settle these liabilities and the amount of such liabilities can be measured reliable. 

The amount of the provision for future expenses recorded is the best estimation of the amount required to 
settle the liabilities determined at the end of the reporting period subject to the risks and uncertainties 
typical for these liabilities. If the amount of the provision for future expenses is calculated on the basis of 
the estimated cash flows for the repayment of liabilities, the provision for future expenses is determined 
as the present value of such cash flows (if the influence of the time value of money is significant). 

If it is expected that the payments required for payment of the liabilities will be partially or fully recovered 
by a third party, the relevant receivables are recognized as asset subject to high probability that the 
recovery will be received and can be measured reliably. 

Accounts payable. Accounts payable are accrued when the counterparty has performed its obligations 
under the contract and are carried at amortised cost. 

Charter capital. The Company is incorporated as a limited liability company in accordance with the 
requirements of the legislation of the Russian Federation. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018 the charter 
capital represent the nominal value of the ownership interest of the Company’s Sole Participant. The 
charter capital is classified as equity and is stated at historical cost. Any excess of the fair value of 
consideration received over the par value of charter capital is recorded as additionally-paid-in capital in 
equity. 

Dividends. Dividends are recorded in equity in the period in which they are declared. Any dividends 
declared after the end of the reporting period and before the financial statements are authorised for issue, 
are disclosed in the subsequent events note. The statutory accounting reports of the Company are the 
basis for profit distribution and other appropriations. Russian legislation identifies the basis of distribution 
as the current year net profit. 

Income and expense recognition. Interest income and expense are recorded for all debt instruments on 
an accrual basis using the effective interest method. This method defers, as part of interest income or 
expense, all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Income from penalties for 
loans issued and factoring receivables is presented within ‘other similar income’ line in profit or loss.  

Fees integral to the effective interest rate include origination fees received or paid by the Company relating 
to the creation or acquisition of a financial asset or issuance of a financial liability, for example brokerage 
fees. 

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial 
assets, except for financial assets that have become credit impaired (Stage 3), for which interest revenue 
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their AC, net of the ECL provision.  

Direct expense for the main activity consists of fees for technical support of platforms, which could not be 
allocated directly to each contract. 

Foreign currency translation. The functional currency of the Company is the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates. The functional currency of the Company and its 
presentation currency is the national currency of the Russian Federation, Russian Roubles (“RUB”). 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation 
of monetary assets and liabilities into roubles at the official exchange rates of the CBR at the transaction 
date are recognised in profit or loss for the year (as foreign exchange translation gains less losses). 
Translation at year-end rates does not apply to non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost. 
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency, including equity investments, are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Effects of exchange 
rate changes on non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are recorded as part of 
the fair value gain or loss. 

As at 31 December 2019, the principal rates of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances 
was USD 1 = RUB 61.9057 (2018: USD 1 = RUB 69.4706) and EUR 1 = RUB 69.3406 (2018: EUR 1 = 
RUB 79.4605). 

Offsetting. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of 
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there 
is an intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Such a right of set off (a) must not be contingent on a future event and (b) must be legally enforceable in 
all of the following circumstances: (i) in the normal course of business, (ii) the event of default and (iii) the 
event of insolvency or bankruptcy. 

Staff costs and related contributions. Wages, salaries, contributions to the Russian Federation state 
pension and social insurance funds, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary 
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the 
Company. The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to make pension or similar benefit 
payments beyond the payments to the statutory defined contribution scheme. 

Presentation of statement of financial position in order of liquidity. The Company does not have a 
clearly identifiable operating cycle and therefore does not present current and non-current assets and 
liabilities separately in the statement of financial position. Instead, assets and liabilities are presented in 
order of their liquidity. Refer to Note 17 for analysis of financial instruments by expected maturity. 

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements, and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and 
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of 
applying the accounting policies. Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include: 

ECL measurement. Measurement of ECLs is a significant estimate that involves determination of 
methodology, models and data inputs. Details of ECL measurement methodology are disclosed in 
Note 17. The following components have a major impact on ECL allowance: definition of default, SICR, 
probability of default (“PD”), exposure at default (“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”), as well as models 
of macro-economic scenarios. The Company regularly reviews and validates the models and inputs to the 
models to reduce any differences between expected credit loss estimates and actual credit loss 
experience. 

Significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”). In order to determine whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring over the life of a financial 
instrument at the end of the reporting date with the risk of default at the date of initial recognition. The 
assessment considers relative increase in credit risk rather than achieving a specific level of credit risk at 
the end of the reporting period. The Company considers all reasonable and supportable forward looking 
information available without undue cost and effort. Refer to Note 17. 

Business model assessment. The business model drives classification of financial assets. Management 
applied judgement in determining the level of aggregation and portfolios of financial instruments when 
performing the business model assessment. When assessing sales transactions, the Company considers 
their historical frequency, timing and value, reasons for the sales and expectations about future sales 
activity. Sales transactions aimed at minimising potential losses due to credit deterioration are considered 
consistent with the “hold to collect” business model. Other sales before maturity, not related to credit risk 
management activities, are also consistent with the “hold to collect” business model, provided that they 
are infrequent or insignificant in value, both individually and in aggregate. 
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The Company assesses significance of sales transactions by comparing the value of the sales to the value 
of the portfolio subject to the business model assessment over the average life of the portfolio. In addition, 
sales of financial asset expected only in stress case scenario, or in response to an isolated event that is 
beyond the Company’s control, is not recurring and could not have been anticipated by the Company, are 
regarded as incidental to the business model objective and do not impact the classification of the 
respective financial assets. 

The “hold to collect and sell” business model means that assets are held to collect the cash flows, but 
selling is also integral to achieving the business model’s objective, such as, managing liquidity needs, 
achieving a particular yield, or matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities 
that fund those assets. 

The residual category includes those portfolios of financial assets, which are managed with the objective 
of realising cash flows primarily through sale, such as where a pattern of trading exists. Collecting 
contractual cash flow is often incidental for this business model. 

Assessment whether cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”). Determining 
whether a financial asset’s cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest required judgement. 
In order to comply with the cash flow criterion, the Company provides loans in accordance with 
agreements involving payments that are solely payments against the principal amount of the debt and 
interest on the outstanding portion of the principal amount of the debt. For these purposes, the Company, 
before making a decision on approval of transactions for lending to clients, as well as before deciding to 
amend their terms and conditions, conducts a comprehensive assessment of all parameters of a potential 
transaction / changes in the transaction for compliance with the cash flow criterion. The Company bases 
its assessment on the analysis of criteria such as the time value of money (whether the element of the 
time value of money is modified), the dependence of the cost and repayment of the loan on the capital 
and financial condition of the borrower, the existence of special conditions to convert the debt into 
instruments of participation in the capital of the borrower, currency (for example, whether payments are 
made on a loan in a currency other than the loan currency), the dependence of the threshold value of the 
interest rate on risks that are not related to the credit risk, whether there is financial leverage, whether it 
is the amount that must be paid at the end of the contract, the outstanding amount of the principal debt 
plus accrued but unpaid interest, the presence of a deferment in the payment of principal and interest, the 
terms of the extension of the contract, the establishment of the interest rate, early repayment as well as 
other special conditions. The instruments that failed the SPPI test are measured at FVTPL. 

Modification of financial assets and liabilities. When financial assets or financial liabilities are 
contractually modified (e.g. renegotiated), the Company assesses whether the modification is substantial 
and should result in derecognition of the original asset or liability and recognition of a new asset or liability 
at fair value. This assessment is based primarily on qualitative factors, described in the relevant 
accounting policy and it requires significant judgment. In particular, the Company applies judgment in 
deciding whether credit impaired renegotiated loans should be derecognised and whether the new 
recognised loans should be considered as credit impaired on initial recognition. The Company also 
analyses if changes in cash flows for loans and borrowings resulted into the significant change of the net 
present value of initial and modified cash flows. The derecognition assessment depends on whether the 
risks and rewards, that is, the variability of expected (rather than contractual) cash flows, change as a 
result of such modifications. 

Use of external ratings. In order to disclose the credit quality of assets in accordance with external 
ratings, primarily ratings assigned by Fitch are used. If Fitch’s rating is not available, existing external 
ratings assigned by other rating agencies are used. 
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5 New Accounting Standards 

Adoption of IFRS 16, Leases. The Company has adopted IFRS 16, which is effective from 1 January 
2019. The Company used practical simplifications as the contracts are short-term and can be terminated 
at maturity without any restrictions. The Company doesn’t recognise right-of-use asset representing its 
right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. 
The Company’s total lease payments are charged to profit or loss for the year (rental expense) on a 
straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

Certain new standards and interpretations have been issued that are mandatory for the annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 or later, and which the Company has not early adopted. 

Amendments to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (issued on 29 March 2018 and 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The revised Conceptual 
Framework includes a new chapter on measurement; guidance on reporting financial performance; 
improved definitions and guidance - in particular the definition of a liability; and clarifications in important 
areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. 

Definition of a business – Amendments to IFRS 3 (issued on 22 October 2018 and effective for 
acquisitions from the beginning of annual reporting period that starts on or after 1 January 2020). 
The amendments revise definition of a business. A business must have inputs and a substantive process 
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The new guidance provides a 
framework to evaluate when an input and a substantive process are present, including for early stage 
companies that have not generated outputs. An organised workforce should be present as a condition for 
classification as a business if are no outputs. The definition of the term ‘outputs’ is narrowed to focus on 
goods and services provided to customers, generating investment income and other income, and it 
excludes returns in the form of lower costs and other economic benefits. It is also no longer necessary to 
assess whether market participants are capable of replacing missing elements or integrating the acquired 
activities and assets. An entity can apply a ‘concentration test’. The assets acquired would not represent 
a business if substantially all of the fair value of gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single asset 
(or a group of similar assets). 

Definition of materiality – Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 (issued on 31 October 2018 and effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The amendments clarify the definition of 
material and how it should be applied by including in the definition guidance that until now has featured 
elsewhere in IFRS. In addition, the explanations accompanying the definition have been improved. Finally, 
the amendments ensure that the definition of material is consistent across all IFRS Standards. Information 
is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions 
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial 
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity. 

Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations are not expected to affect 
significantly the Company’s financial statements. 
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6 Cash and cash equivalents 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
31 December 

2019 
31 December 

2018 
   
Settlement accounts 589 807 333 148 
Short-term deposits in banks - 1 325 276 
   
   
Total cash and cash equivalents 589 807 1 658 424 
   

Cash and cash equivalents are not collateralised, not credit-impaired, not overdue or pledged assets. All 
cash and cash equivalents are classified in Stage 1 as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018. 

As at 31 December 2019 no allowance for expected credit losses from cash and cash equivalents was 
created by the Company (31 December 2018: nil).  

Analysis by credit quality of cash and cash equivalents balances based on external ratings at 31 December 
2019 and 31 December 2018 is as follows: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
31 December 

2019 
31 December 

2018 
   
Settlement accounts   

- AA- to AA+ rated 268 - 
- A- to A+ rated 21 - 
- BBB- to BBB+ rated 23 755 15 718 
- BB- to BB+ rated 565 758 311 343 
- B- to B+ rated 5 6 087 
   

Short-term deposits in banks   
- BB- to BB+ rated - 1 325 276 

   
   
Total cash and cash equivalents 589 807 1 658 424 
   

At 31 December 2019 the Company had 1 counterparty (31 December 2018: 1 counterparty) with 
aggregated cash and cash equivalent balances comprises 95.5% of the cash and cash equivalents 
(31 December 2018: 98.5%). 

7 Accounts receivable 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
31 December 

2019 
31 December 

2018 
   
Trade accounts receivable 10 381 6 618 
   
   
Total financial accounts receivable 10 381 6 618 
   
   
Advances given 7 010 2 468 
Other taxes receivable 2 735 704 
Other accounts receivable 144 45 
   
   
Total non-financial accounts receivable 9 889 3 217 
   
   
Total accounts receivable 20 270 9 835 
   

As at 31 December 2019, no allowance for expected credit loss of accounts receivable was created by 
the Company (31 December 2018: nil). All financial accounts receivable are classified in Stage 1 as at 
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018. As at 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2018 the 
Company does not have overdue or impaired accounts receivable, accounts receivable are not 
collateralised.  

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be recovered within twelve months after the year-end. 
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8 Factoring receivables 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
31 December 

2019 
31 December 

2018 
   
Receivables purchased under factoring agreement 748 183 1 548 176 

- Less accounts payable to factoring clients (65 260) (134 765) 
   
   
Net factoring receivables 682 923 1 413 411 
   
   
Less: ECL allowance (163 634) (4 081) 
   
   
Total factoring receivables 519 289 1 409 330 
   

All factoring receivables are stated at amortized cost calculated using effective interest rates. On 
conclusion of factoring agreement the Company transfers to the client 80% - 90% of the total receivables 
purchased in accordance with the funding ratios established by the Credit Committee. Second part is 
transferred after repayment of receivables from debtors. Starting from the end of 2019 there were no new 
issuance of factoring financing, as the projected profitability indicators were low due to the increased 
competition from banks which are able to provide cheaper factoring financing and services. 

At the end of the reporting period, there are no factoring receivables that were modified during the reporting 
period. 

The changes in the ECL allowance during 2019 are as follows: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
ECL allowance 

Stage 1 Stage 3 Total 
    
at 1 January 2019 1 385 2 696 4 081 
    
Credit loss expense for the period:    
ECL movement, net (32) 166 219 166 187 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 1) (25) 25 - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 747 - 747 
Increase of exposure for existing financial assets 14 - 14 
Repaid financial assets (1 299) (24) (1 323) 
    
    
Total credit loss expense for the period (595) 166 220 165 625 
    
    
Other changes in ECL allowance for the period:    
Write-offs - (6 072) (6 072) 
    
    
at 31 December 2019 790 162 844 163 634 
    

The changes in the ECL allowance during 2018 are as follows: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
ECL allowance 

Stage 1 Stage 3 Total 
    
at 1 January 2018 662 156 818 
    
ECL movement, net - 2 535 2 535 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 1) (5) 5 - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 1 390 - 1 390 
Repaid financial assets (662) - (662) 
    
    
at 31 December 2018 1 385 2 696 4 081 
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8  Factoring receivables (Continued) 

The changes in the gross carrying amount for factoring receivables during 2019 are as follows: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
Gross carrying amount 

Stage 1 Stage 3 Total 
    
at 1 January 2019 1 407 698 5 713 1 413 411 
    
Transfer between stages (from Stage 1) (165 223) 165 223 - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 229 255 - 229 255 
Increase of exposure for existing financial assets 134 744 2 052 136 796 
Repaid financial assets (1 088 774) (1 693) (1 090 467) 
Written-off financial assets - (6 072) (6 072) 
    
    
at 31 December 2019 517 700 165 223 682 923 
    

Loans transferred from Stage 1 to Stage 3 are represented by 2 customers. The Company estimates the 
probability of recoveries on these loans as low and recognised ECL allowance in full amount. 

The Company applied the portfolio impairment assessment methodology prescribed by IFRS 9 “Financial 
Instruments”.  

For factoring receivables that have been classified as credit impaired, the ECL allowance is estimated on 
an individual basis. Factoring receivables that are not credit-impaired are included in the calculation of 
collective impairment. 

A 10% increase or decrease in actual loss experience compared to the loss estimates used would result in 
an increase or decrease in collective loan impairment losses of RUB 79 thousand (31 December 2018: 
RUB 139 thousand), respectively. Impairment losses for individually assessed loans are based on estimates 
of discounted future cash flows of the factoring receivables. A 10% increase or decrease in the actual loss 
experience compared to the loss estimates used would result in an increase or decrease in individually 
assessed loan impairment losses of RUB 9 thousand (31 December 2018: RUB 270 thousand). 

Analysis by credit quality of factoring receivables outstanding at 31 December 2019 based on external 
ratings is as follow: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles Stage 1 Stage 3 Total 
    
BBB- to BBB+ rated  10 864 - 10 864 
BB- to BB+ rated 83 828 - 83 828 
Not rated, including 423 008 165 223 588 231 

BBB- to BBB+ internally rated 67 858 - 67 858 
BB- to BB+ internally rated 155 212 - 155 212 
B- to B+ internally rated 34 789 - 34 789 
CCC- to CCC+ internally rated 44 471 - 44 471 
Less than B- internally rated 120 678 165 223 285 901 

    
    
Total factoring receivables 517 700 165 223 682 923 
    

Analysis by credit quality of factoring receivables outstanding at 31 December 2018 based on external 
ratings is as follow: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles Stage 1 Stage 3 Total 
    
BBB- to BBB+ rated  60 158 - 60 158 
BB- to BB+ rated 583 964 5 713 589 677 
Not rated, including 763 576 - 763 576 

AAA- to AAA+ internally rated 194 487 - 194 487 
AA- to AA+ internally rated 1 100 - 1 100 
A- to A+ internally rated 75 010 - 75 010 
BBB- to BBB+ internally rated 2 529 - 2 529 
BB- to BB+ internally rated 5 549 - 5 549 
B- to B+ internally rated 222 663 - 222 663 
Less than B- 262 238 - 262 238 

    
    
Total factoring receivables 1 407 698 5 713 1 413 411 
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8  Factoring receivables (Continued) 

Analysis by credit quality of factoring receivables outstanding at 31 December 2019 based on the days 
past due is as follow: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles Stage 1 Stage 3 Total 
    
Not overdue 517 700 - 517 700 
Overdue 90-179 days - 2 465 2 465 
Overdue 180-360 days - 112 356 112 356 
Overdue more than 360 days - 50 402 50 402 
    
    
Total gross factoring receivables 517 700 165 223 682 923 
Less: ECL allowance (790) (162 844) (163 634) 
    
    
Total factoring receivables 516 910 2 379 519 289 
    

Analysis by credit quality of factoring receivables outstanding at 31 December 2018 based on the days 
past due is as follow: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles Stage 1 Stage 3 Total 
    
Not overdue 1 407 698 - 1 407 698 
Overdue 180-360 days - 4 840 4 840 
Overdue more than 360 days - 873 873 
    
    
Total gross factoring receivables 1 407 698 5 713 1 413 411 
Less: ECL allowance (1 385) (2 696) (4 081) 
    
    
Total factoring receivables 1 406 313 3 017 1 409 330 
    

As at 31 December 2019 the outstanding contractual amounts of factoring receivables written off that are 
still subject to enforcement activity was 6 072 thousand (31 December 2018: nil).  

As at 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2018 factoring receivables are not collateralised. The 
clients under factoring receivables mainly represented by the companies in the wholesale trade. 

As at 31 December there was 1 client within the outstanding factoring receivables which comprises 22% 
of total factoring receivables (31 December 2018: no such clients). 

9 Loans issued 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
31 December 

2019 
31 December 

2018 
   
Secured loans 1 208 840 575 976 
Other loans 751 032 421 127 
Tender loans 579 850 513 699 
   
   
Gross loans issued 2 539 722 1 510 802 
   
   
Less: ECL allowance (42 551) (38 800) 
   
   
Total loans issued 2 497 171 1 472 002 
   

At the end of the reporting period, there are no loans issued that were modified during the reporting period. 

The Company offers several loan products on the market in the framework of microfinance activities:  

• financing of legal entities, individual entrepreneurs and individuals, secured by real estate mainly 
with loan-to-value ratio more than 50% (secured loans); 

• other loans to legal entities and individual entrepreneurs have average maturity of less than 1 year 
and include contracts fulfilment target loans and other unsecured loans; 

• financing of small and medium-sized enterprises for participation in tender auctions with average 
maturity about 3 months (tender loans). 
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9  Loans issued (Continued) 

The changes in the ECL allowance during 2019 are as follows: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
ECL allowance 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
     
Secured loans     
at 1 January 2019 4 008 601 19 023 23 632 
     
Credit loss expense for the period:     
ECL movement, net (5 138) (89) (3 699) (8 926) 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 1) (223) 223 - - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 2) 396 (467) 71 - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 3) 3 093 - (3 093) - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 2 395 - - 2 395 
Increase of exposure for existing financial assets 36 - 1 018 1 054 
Repaid financial assets (1 211) (188) (1 316) (2 715) 
Unwinding of discount - - (3 195) (3 195) 
     
     
Total credit loss expense for the period (652) (521) (10 214) (11 387) 
     
     
at 31 December 2019 3 356 80 8 809 12 245 
     
     
Other loans     
at 1 January 2019 7 355 68 3 952 11 375 
     
Credit loss expense for the period:     
ECL movement, net (10) 133 37 318 37 441 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 1) (627) - 627 - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 2) - (68) 68 - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 13 727 - - 13 727 
Repaid financial assets (6 677) - (345) (7 022) 
Unwinding of discount - - (541) (541) 
     
     
Total credit loss expense for the period 6 413 65 37 127 43 605 
     
     
Other changes in ECL allowance for the period:     
Write-offs - - (30 331) (30 331) 
     
     
at 31 December 2019 13 768 133 10 748 24 649 
     
     
Tender loans     
at 1 January 2019 767 19 3 007 3 793 
     
Credit loss expense for the period:     
ECL movement, net - - 7 226 7 226 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 1) (1) - 1 - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 2) - (19) 19 - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 1 598 - - 1 598 
Repaid financial assets (764) - - (764) 
Unwinding of discount - - (17) (17) 
     
     
Total credit loss expense for the period 833 (19) 7 229 8 043 
     
     
Other changes in ECL allowance for the period:     
Write-offs - - (6 179) (6 179) 
     
     
at 31 December 2019 1 600 - 4 057 5 657 
     
     
Total ECL allowance 18 724 213 23 614 42 551 
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9  Loans issued (Continued) 

The changes in the ECL allowance during 2018 are as follows: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
ECL allowance 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
     
Secured loans     
at 1 January 2018 10 417 52 2 733 13 202 
     
ECL movement, net (123) 10 15 756 15 643 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 2) (1 124) 1 124 - - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 3) - (534) 534 - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 3 100 - - 3 100 
Repaid financial assets (8 262) (51) - (8 313) 
     
     
at 31 December 2018 4 008 601 19 023 23 632 
     
     
Other loans     
at 1 January 2018 2 590 - 2 550 5 140 
     
ECL movement, net (1 515) (31) 2 392 846 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 2) (237) 237 - - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 3) - (138) 138 - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 8 372 - - 8 372 
Repaid financial assets (1 855) - (1 128) (2 983) 
     
     
at 31 December 2018 7 355 68 3 952 11 375 
     
     
Tender loans     
at 1 January 2018 253 - 3 072 3 325 
     
ECL movement, net (251) 12 2 999 2 760 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 2) (15) 15 - - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 3) - (8) 8 - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 780 - - 780 
Repaid financial assets - - (3 072) (3 072) 
     
     
at 31 December 2018 767 19 3 007 3 793 
     
     
Total ECL allowance 12 130 688 25 982 38 800 
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9  Loans issued (Continued) 

The changes in the gross carrying amount for loans issued carried at amortised cost during 2019 are as 
follows: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
Gross carrying amount 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
     
Secured loans     
at 1 January 2019 463 249 49 064 63 663 575 976 
     
Transfer between stages (from Stage 1) (34 107) 34 107 - - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 2) 17 026 (47 820) 30 794 - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 3) 13 758 - (13 758) - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 721 474 - - 721 474 
Increase of exposure for existing financial assets 34 261 - - 34 261 
Repaid financial assets (118 807) (2 269) (6 046) (127 122) 
Changes in interest accrued 3 680 1 228 (657) 4 251 
     
     
at 31 December 2019 1 100 534 34 310 73 996 1 208 840 
     
     
Other loans     
at 1 January 2019 412 280 3 382 5 465 421 127 
     
Transfer between stages (from Stage 1) (44 407) 2 886 41 521 - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 2) - (3 858) 3 858 - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 695 151 - - 695 151 
Increase of exposure for existing financial assets 38 600 - - 38 600 
Repaid financial assets (378 993) - (438) (379 431) 
Written-off financial assets - - (30 331) (30 331) 
Changes in interest accrued 5 544 591 (219) 5 916 
     
     
at 31 December 2019 728 175 3 001 19 856 751 032 
     
     
Tender loans     
at 1 January 2019 507 974 1 303 4 422 513 699 
     
Transfer between stages (from Stage 1) (10 126) - 10 126 - 
Transfer between stages (from Stage 2) 4 (1 207) 1 203 - 
New originated or purchased financial assets 583 146 - - 583 146 
Repaid financial assets (504 116) (88) (3 920) (508 124) 
Written-off financial assets - - (6 179) (6 179) 
Changes in interest accrued (3 585) (8) 901 (2 692) 
     
     
at 31 December 2019 573 297 - 6 553 579 850 
     
     
Total gross carrying amount of loans issued  2 402 006 37 311 100 405 2 539 722 
     

The above table doesn’t include loans issued and repaid during the period. 

The Company applied the portfolio impairment assessment methodology prescribed by IFRS 9 “Financial 
Instruments”. For loans issued that have been classified as credit impaired, the ECL allowance is 
estimated on an individual basis. Loans issued that are not credit-impaired are included in the calculation 
of collective impairment. 

A 10% increase or decrease in actual loss experience compared to the loss estimates used would result in 
an increase or decrease in collective loan impairment losses of RUB 1 894 thousand (31 December 2018: 
RUB 1 282 thousand), respectively. Impairment losses for individually assessed loans are based on 
estimates of discounted future cash flows. A 10% increase or decrease in the actual loss experience 
compared to the loss estimates used would result in an increase or decrease in individually assessed loan 
impairment losses of RUB 2 361 thousand (31 December 2018: RUB 2 598 thousand). 
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9  Loans issued (Continued) 

Analysis of credit quality of loans issued outstanding at 31 December 2019 based on the days past due 
is as follow: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
     
Secured loans     
Not overdue 1 073 382 - - 1 073 382 
Overdue less than 30 days 27 152 - - 27 152 
Overdue 30-89 days - 34 310 - 34 310 
Overdue 180-360 days - - 30 699 30 699 
Overdue more than 360 days - - 43 297 43 297 
     
     
Total gross secured loans 1 100 534 34 310 73 996 1 208 840 
Less: ECL allowance (3 356) (80) (8 809) (12 245) 
     
     
Total net secured loans  1 097 178 34 230 65 187 1 196 595 
          
Other loans     
Not overdue 724 129 - - 724 129 
Overdue less than 30 days 4 046 - - 4 046 
Overdue 30-89 days - 3 001 - 3 001 
Overdue 90-179 days - - 19 529 19 529 
Overdue more than 360 days - - 327 327 
     
     
Total gross other loans 728 175 3 001 19 856 751 032 
Less: ECL allowance (13 768) (133) (10 748) (24 649) 
     
     
Total net other loans  714 407 2 868 9 108 726 383 
     
     
Tender loans     
Not overdue 572 886 - - 572 886 
Overdue less than 30 days 411 - - 411 
Overdue 90-179 days - - 6 503 6 503 
Overdue 180-360 days - - 50 50 
     
     
Total gross tender loans 573 297 - 6 553 579 850 
Less: ECL allowance (1 600) - (4 057) (5 657) 
     
     
Total net tender loans 571 697 - 2 496 574 193 
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9  Loans issued (Continued) 

Analysis of credit quality of loans issued outstanding at 31 December 2018 based on the days past due 
is as follow: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
     
Secured loans     
Not overdue 383 515 - - 383 515 
Overdue less than 30 days 79 734 - - 79 734 
Overdue 30-89 days - 49 064 - 49 064 
Overdue 90-179 days - - 28 451 28 451 
Overdue 180-360 days - - 11 772 11 772 
Overdue more than 360 days - - 23 440 23 440 
     
     
Total gross secured loans 463 249 49 064 63 663 575 976 
Less: ECL allowance (4 008) (601) (19 023) (23 632) 
     
     
Total net secured loans  459 241 48 463 44 640 552 344 
     
     
Other loans     
Not overdue 397 735 - - 397 375 
Overdue less than 30 days 14 545 - - 14 545 
Overdue 30-89 days - 3 382 -  3 382 
Overdue 90-179 days - - 1 357 1 357 
Overdue 180-360 days - - 1 949 1 949 
Overdue more than 360 days - - 2 159 2 159 
     
     
Total gross other loans 412 280 3 382 5 465 421 127 
Less: ECL allowance (7 355) (68) (3 952) (11 375) 
     
     
Total net other loans  404 925 3 314 1 513 409 752 
     
     
Tender loans     
Not overdue 504 430 - - 504 430 
Overdue less than 30 days 3 544 - - 3 544 
Overdue 30-89 days - 1 303 - 1 303 
Overdue 90-179 days - - 3 803 3 803 
Overdue 180-360 days - - 619 619 
     
     
Total gross tender loans 507 974 1 303 4 422 513 699 
Less: ECL allowance (767) (19) (3 007) (3 793) 
     
     
Total net tender loans 507 207 1 284 1 415 509 906 
     

Analysis of collaterals 

Secured loans are the loans to individuals and corporate customers secured by a pledge of real estate. 
Tender loans and Other loans are not secured. 

As at 31 December 2019 the Company received a collateral of real estate for a total of RUB 3 576 816 
thousand (31 December 2018: RUB 1 761 766 thousand) or RUB 1 196 941 thousand (31 December 
2018: RUB 538 463 thousand) excluding effect of overcollaterisation. To assess property before loan 
issuance independent appraisers are employed by the Company. 

There was no repossessed collateral in 2019 and 2018. 

As at 31 December 2019 the outstanding contractual amounts of loans issued written off that are still 
subject to enforcement activity was RUB 36 510 thousand (31 December 2018: nil). 
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9  Loans issued (Continued) 

Economic sector risk concentrations within the loan portfolios are as follows: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
31 December 

2019 
  
Construction 779 124 
Individuals 666 786 
Property rental 250 064 
Wholesale trade 183 509 
Transportation 146 358 
Advertising activities 78 615 
Real estate activities 70 447 
Financial services 65 573 
Other services 60 961 
Manufacturing 53 331 
Retail 35 969 
Information and communication 30 037 
Technical and repair services 25 585 
Food services 18 625 
Cleaning services 15 784 
Consultancy 15 059 
Other 43 895 
  
  
Gross loans issued 2 539 722 
  
  
Less: ECL allowance (42 551) 
  
  
Total loans issued 2 497 171 
  

10 Intangible assets 

The following table provides information on the movement of intangible assets in 2019 and 2018. 

 Software and 
Licenses  

Websites, 
trademarks 
and signs 

 
Other 

intangible 
assets 

 Total 

        
Gross amount as at 1 January 2018 8 367  1 167  1 054  10 588 
Accumulated amortization (3 722)  (207)  (307)  (4 236) 
        
        
Carrying value as at 1 January 2018 4 645  960  747  6 352 
        
        
Additions 3 861  -  -  3 861 
Amortization (1 965)  (212)  (325)  (2 502) 
        
        
Carrying value as at 31 December 2018 6 541  748  422  7 711 
        
        
Gross amount as at 31 December 2018 12 228  1 167  1 054  14 449 
Accumulated amortization (5 687)  (419)  (632)  (6 738) 
        
        
Carrying value as at 31 December 2018 6 541  748  422  7 711 
        
        
Additions 820  -  -  820 
Amortization (2 083)  (211)  (325)  (2 619) 
        
        
Carrying value as at 31 December 2019 5 278  537  97  5 912 
        
        
Gross amount as at 31 December 2019 13 048  1 167  1 054  15 269 
Accumulated amortization (7 770)  (630)  (957)  (9 357) 
        
        
Carrying value as at 31 December 2019 5 278  537  97  5 912 
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11 Accounts payable 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
31 December 

2019 
31 December 

2018 
   
Trade accounts payable 49 023 21 074 
   
   
Total financial accounts payable 49 023 21 074 
   
   
Other taxes payable 9 309 10 735 
Accounts payable to employees 3 800 2 962 
Other accounts payable 3 854 3 097 
   
   
Total non-financial accounts payable 16 963 16 794 
   
   
Total accounts payable 65 986 37 868 
   

12 Loans and borrowings 

Borrower 
Cur- 

rency Start date 
Maturity 

date 

Nominal 
interest 

rate 

Effective 
interest 

rate 

Balance as 
at 31 

December 
2019 

Balance as 
at 31 

December 
2018 

        
SF Holdings Company PLC USD 2017-2018 2022 11.0% 8.5% 701 570 878 275 
SF Holdings Company PLC USD 2018 2024 7.0% 6.1% 530 983 1 181 250 
SF Holdings Company PLC USD 2018 2028 6.5% 6.5% - 273 152 
Finteca LLC RUB 2017-2019 2022 10.5% 10.9% 685 524 673 026 
Finteca Holdings Ltd RUB 2017 2022 6.0% 13.3% 354 543 319 281 
Transcontinental Properties LLC RUB 2016 2020 11.0% 11.0% 44 340 42 240 
        
        
Total loans and borrowings     2 316 960 3 367 224 
        

For loans and borrowings bearing a non-market interest rate a fair value adjustment recognized at initial 
recognition net of tax totals RUB 52 344 thousand and is recorded as an increase of additional paid in 
capital (2018: RUB 155 138 thousand). 

In 2019 the Company made early repayments of certain loans and borrowings, as well as modified terms 
of certain loans and borrowings. The modifications were assessed to be non-significant. Early repayments 
and modification of terms resulted in partial reversal of fair value adjustment, previously recognized within 
additional paid-in capital, which amounted to RUB 101 902 thousand net of tax 
(2018: RUB 72 000 thousand). 

The movement in loans and borrowings during 2019 and 2018 is presented below: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
31 December 

2019 
  
Net debt as at 1 January 2018 2 635 739 
  
Loans received 1 966 209 
Repayment of loans received (1 795 883) 
Accruals 221 821 
Interest expense paid (53 087) 
Foreign exchange differences 333 496 
Fair value adjustment 58 929 
  
  
Net debt as at 31 December 2018 3 367 224 
  
Loans received 30 000 
Repayment of loans received (906 410) 
Accruals 267 860 
Interest expense paid (333 626) 
Foreign exchange differences (240 580) 
Fair value adjustment 132 492 
  
  
Net debt at 31 December 2019 2 316 960 
  



MCC SimpleFinance LLC 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 
 

31 

9  Loans and borrowings (Continued) 

Interest rate analysis of loans and borrowings is disclosed in Note 17. Information on related party 
balances is disclosed in Note 20. 

13 Equity 

The authorised charter capital of the Company as at 31 December 2019 is RUB 10 000 thousand 
(31 December 2018: RUB 10 000 thousand).  

The Company has no formal policy for capital management but Management seeks to maintain a sufficient 
capital base for meeting the Company’s operational and strategic needs, and to maintain confidence of 
market participants. This is achieved with efficient cash management, constant monitoring of Company’s 
revenues and profit and long-term investment plans. 

Under the current capital requirements set by the CBR, micro-credit companies have to maintain a ratio 
of regulatory capital to assets (“statutory capital ratio”) above a prescribed minimum level (5% for 2019 
and 2018). The Company complied with the requirements as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 
2018.  

Additionally-paid-in capital is represented by the following: 

Contributions from the Participant. In 2019 participant made contribution to the Additionally-paid-in capital 
in the amount of USD 1 000 thousand or RUB 64 867 thousand in rouble equivalent (2018: USD 15 000 
thousand or RUB 1 183 101 thousand in rouble equivalent). 

Fair value adjustment on loans and borrowings. As at 31 December 2019 the accumulated fair value 
adjustment totals RUB 52 344 thousand net of tax RUB 13 086 thousand (31 December 2018: 
RUB 155 138 thousand net of tax RUB 37 105 thousand). In 2019 and 2018 the Company early repaid 
several loans received from parent company before contractual maturity as well as modified terms of 
several borrowings, which resulted in a decrease of fair value adjustment recorded as a distribution in 
equity. 

14 Interest income 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2019 2018 
   
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method   
   
Interest income from tender loans 364 657 206 420 
Interest income from secured loans 153 722 116 233 
Interest income from other loans 139 534 59 212 
Interest income from factoring 113 020 153 534 
Interest income from deposits 45 160 15 662 
   
   
Total Interest income calculated using the effective interest method 816 093 551 061 
   
   
Other similar income   
   
Other income from the main activity, including interest charged on overdue balances in 
form of penalties and fines 29 409 14 949 
   
   
Total other similar income 29 409 14 949 
   
   
Total interest income 845 502 566 010 
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15 Selling and administrative expenses 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2019 2018 
   
Selling expenses   
   
Tender loans platform fee 32 864 32 392 
Staff costs 29 919 25 849 
IT expenses 5 578 2 140 
Rent expenses 2 650 1 809 
Factoring platform fee 2 493 4 942 
Marketing and PR 2 373 4 861 
Amortization of intangible assets 400 - 
Depreciation of fixed assets 180 74 
Other 2 139 1 672 
   
   
Total selling expenses 78 596 73 739 
   
   
Administrative expenses   
   
Staff costs 163 738 107 152 
Professional services 33 118 28 351 
Rent expenses 10 814 11 268 
Bank charges 7 614 8 389 
Audit fee 5 940 6 428 
IT expenses 3 749 3 385 
Amortization of intangible assets 2 219 2 502 
Communications services 1 390 566 
Other 4 583 2 336 
   
   
Total administrative expenses 233 165 170 377 
   

Included in staff costs are statutory social security and pension contributions of RUB 35 070 thousand 
(2018: RUB 23 698 thousand). 

16 Income Tax 

(a) Components of income tax expense 

Income tax expense (benefit) comprises the following: 
In thousands of Russian Roubles 2019 2018 
   
Current tax expense related to current period 73 200 1 269 
Current tax benefit related to the prior periods (7 821) - 
Deferred tax (52 283) (3 785) 
   
   
Income tax expense (benefit) for the year 13 096 (2 516) 
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16  Income Tax (Continued) 

(b) Reconciliation between the tax expense and profit or loss multiplied by the applicable tax rate 

The income tax rate applicable to the 2019 income of the Company is 20% (2018: 20%). 

Reconciliation between the expected and the actual taxation charge is provided below. 
In thousands of Russian Roubles 2019 2018 
     
Profit (loss) before tax 120 081  (135 243)  
     
     
Theoretical tax charge at the applicable statutory rate 24 016 20.00% (27 049) 20.00% 
     
Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable 
for taxation purposes: 

  
  

     
Changes in current tax expense for prior period (7 821) (6.51%) - - 
Other (non-taxable income) non-deductible expenses (3 297) (2.75%) 24 533 (18.14%) 
Tax penalties 198 0.16% - - 
     
     
Income tax expense (benefit) for the year 13 096 10.91% (2 516) 1.86% 
     

(c) Deferred taxes analysed by types of temporary differences 

Differences between IFRS and statutory taxation regulations in Russia give rise to temporary differences 
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. 
The tax effect of the movements in these temporary differences is detailed below. 

In thousands of Russian 
Roubles 

1 January 
2018 

Credited 
(charged) 
to profit or 

loss 

Credited 
(charged) 
to equity 

31 
December 

2018 

Credited 
(charged) 
to profit or 

loss 

Credited 
(charged) 
to equity 

31 
December 

2019 
        
Tax effect of 
deductible (taxable) 
temporary differences        
Fixed assets (23) (17) - (40) (175) - (215) 
Intangible assets (33) 6 - (27) 6 - (21) 
ECL allowance 902 3 485 1 771 6 158 33 261 - 39 419 
Loans granted 450 311 - 761 8 506 - 9 267 
Loans and borrowings (41 865) - 4 760 (37 105) 4 918 24 019 (8 168) 
Other receivables - - - - 5 552 - 5 552 
Other payables - - - - 215 - 215 
        
        
Net deferred tax asset 
(liability) (40 569) 3 785 6 531 (30 253) 52 283 24 019 46 049 
        
        
Recognised deferred tax 
asset 1 352 (964) 6 531 6 919 23 515 24 019 54 453 
Recognised deferred tax 
liability (41 921) 4 749 - (37 172) 28 768 - (8 404) 
        
        
Net deferred tax asset 
(liability) (40 569) 3 785 6 531 (30 253) 52 283 24 019 46 049 
        

Deferred tax asset recognised as at 31 December 2019 related to the temporary tax differences which 
have no restrictions for the settlement period. The Company’s management estimates the recoverability 
of deferred tax asset as high based on the expected profit for the next 3 years. 
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17 Financial risk management  

Main risks accepted by the Company are risks incidental to the companies carrying out lending activity 
and having financial assets and liabilities in foreign currency. Risk management system of the Company 
is aimed at maintenance and further development of internal control systems which are the basic key to 
success of the Company in this segment. 

Risk management structure. The Company’s Management is ultimately responsible for identifying and 
controlling the risks of the Company. At the same time the Company has a special Department of Expertise 
and Decision-making, which is responsible for risk management and monitoring. 

The Management is responsible for developing a general risk management approach and for development 
of risk strategies and principles. It is also responsible for assessing the Company’s internal control system 
effectiveness, including the overall risk management system. 

The Finance Department is responsible for managing the assets and liabilities of the Company and its 
financial structure as a whole. In addition, it has the primary responsibility for managing the liquidity and 
financing risks of the Company. 

The risk management processes in the Company are annually checked by the Finance Department, which 
examines both the adequacy of procedures and the Company’s compliance with procedures. The Finance 
Department discusses the results of the assessment with the Management. 

Risk assessment and reporting systems. The Company’s risks are estimated using the method that 
reflects both the expected loss that can occur in normal circumstances and an unexpected loss. The 
method includes calculating the final actual loss on the basis of statistical models. In these models, 
probability values based on past experience, adjusted for economic conditions are used. The Company 
also analyses scenarios of the worst sequence of events, suggesting that extraordinary events, the 
probability of which is very low, will actually occur. 

Risk monitoring and control is mainly based on the limits of financing set by the Company. These limits 
reflect the business strategy and market conditions of the Company’s environment, as well as the level of 
risk that the Company wishes to take, with additional attention paid to individual industries. In addition, the 
Company monitors and assesses the overall ability to withstand risks in relation to overall exposure to 
risks in all types of risk and business areas. 

Information collected in all areas of activity is examined and processed for the purpose of analysis, control 
and early detection of risks. This information is presented and explained to the management, as well as 
to the head of each business line. The report includes indicators of total credit risk, exceptions to limits, 
liquidity ratios, and changes in the risk profile. Detailed risk reporting in terms of industry, customer, and 
geographic segments is presented every month. Management assesses the adequacy of the ECL 
allowance on a monthly basis. 

Credit risk. The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial 
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Exposure to 
credit risk arises as a result of the Company’s lending and other transactions with counterparties giving 
rise to financial assets. 

Risk management and monitoring is carried out within established limits by the Credit Committee and the 
Management. Before any direct action by the Credit Committee, all recommendations on credit processes 
(restrictions set for borrowers or addendums to a loan agreement, etc.) are reviewed and approved by the 
risk management department manager or the Finance Department. 

The Company sets the level of its credit risk by determining the maximum amount of risk in respect of one 
borrower or a group of borrowers. Limits in respect of the level of credit risk for borrowers, products on a 
monthly basis (quarterly) are approved by the Company Management. The risk for each borrower 
including banks and brokers is further limited by sublimits covering the balance sheet and off-balance 
sheet risks set by the Management. The actual size of risks is monitored daily against the established 
limits. 

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding collateral and guarantees is generally 
reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets in the statement of financial position.  
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17 Financial risk management (Continued) 

Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement. ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of the present value 
of future cash shortfalls (i.e., the weighted average of credit losses, with the respective risks of default 
occurring in a given time period used as weights). An ECL measurement is unbiased and is determined 
by evaluating a range of possible outcomes. ECL measurement is based on three components used by 
the Company: Probability of Default (“PD”), Exposure at Default (“EAD”) and Loss Given Default (“LGD”). 

EAD is an estimate of exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the 
exposure after the reporting period, including repayments of principal and interest, and expected 
drawdowns on committed facilities. PD an estimate of the likelihood of default to occur over a given time 
period. LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the 
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from any collateral. 
It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The expected losses are discounted to present value 
at the end of the reporting period.  

Expected credit losses are modelled over instrument’s lifetime period. The lifetime period is equal to the 
remaining contractual period to maturity of debt instruments, adjusted for expected prepayments, if any. 

For purposes of measuring PD, the Company defines default as a situation when the exposure meets one 
or more of the following criteria: 

• the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the 
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); 

• the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Company; or 

• it is becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy due 
to the borrower’s inability to pay its credit obligations.  

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Company considers indicators that are:  

• qualitative – e.g. breaches of covenants;  

• quantitative – e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to 
the Company; and  

• based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.  

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary 
over time to reflect changes in circumstances.  

For purposes of disclosure, the Company fully aligned the definition of default with the definition of credit-
impaired assets. The default definition stated above is applied to all types of financial assets of the 
Company. 

For the assessment whether or not there has been a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial 
recognition the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available 
without undue cost or effort.  

The Company uses the following criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk: 

• qualitative indicators; and  

• backstop of 30 days past due.  

The Company assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each 
reporting date. Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant depends on the characteristics 
of the portfolio and will include a ‘backstop’ for the term of the delay.  

In some cases, applying the expert assessment of the quality of a loan and, if applicable, relevant historical 
experience, the Company determines that there has been a SICR for a position subject to credit risk, if 
this is indicated by specific information available, and these indicators cannot be timely taken into account 
fully in the framework of quantitative analysis. 

As a backstop, the Company considers that a SICR occurs no later than when an asset is more than 30 
days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed 
due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without 
considering any grace period that might be available to the borrower. 
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17 Financial risk management (Continued) 

The level of ECL that is recognised in these financial statements depends on whether the credit risk of the 
borrower has increased significantly since initial recognition. This is a three-stage model for ECL 
measurement. A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition and its credit risk has 
not increased significantly since initial recognition has a ECL allowance based on 12-month ECLs (Stage 
1). If a SICR since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to Stage 2 but is not 
yet deemed to be credit-impaired and the loss allowance is based on lifetime ECLs. If a financial 
instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is moved to Stage 3 and loss allowance is based on 
lifetime ECLs. The consequence of an asset being in Stage 3 is that the entity ceases to recognise interest 
income based on gross carrying value and applies the asset’s effective interest rate to the carrying 
amount, net of ECL, when calculating interest income. 

If there is evidence that the SICR criteria are no longer met, the instrument is transferred back to Stage 1. 
Some qualitative indicators of an increase in credit risk, such as delinquency or forbearance, may be 
indicative of an increased risk of default that persists after the indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these 
cases the Company determines a probation period during which the financial asset is required to 
demonstrate good behaviour to provide evidence that its credit risk has declined sufficiently. When 
contractual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence that the criteria for recognizing lifetime ECL are 
no longer met includes history of up-to-date payment performance against the modified contractual terms. 

The probation period for each type of credit product depends on its turnover rate:  

• for factoring financing the probation period maybe from 30 to 60 days; 

• for tender loans the probation period maybe from 20 to 30 days; 

• for secured loans the probation period maybe from 30 to 120 days; 

• for other loans the probation period maybe from 30 to 60 days.  

The Company monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify SICR by regular reviews to confirm 
that:  

• the criteria are capable of identifying SICR before an exposure is in default;  

• the criteria do not align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;  

• the average time between the identification of a SICR and default appears reasonable;  

• exposures are not generally transferred directly from 12-month ECL measurement to credit-
impaired; and  

• there is no unwarranted volatility in ECL allowance from transfers between 12-month ECL (Stage 
1) and lifetime ECL measurements (Stage 2). 

The Company has two approaches for ECL measurement: (i) assessment on an individual basis; (ii) 
assessment on a portfolio basis: the same credit risk parameters (e.g. PD, LGD) will be applied during the 
process of ECL calculations for the homogeneous segments of the loan portfolio. An assessment on an 
individual basis is carried out for instruments assigned to Stage 3. 

In assessing expected credit losses for impaired loans (Stage 3) on an individual basis, expected credit 
losses represent the negative difference between the current carrying amount and the present discounted 
present value of expected future cash flows. Expected future cash flows are discounted using the original 
effective interest rate and include the fair value of collateral, if any. 

For loans not related to Stage 3, the assessment of expected credit losses is performed on a portfolio 
basis.  

The ECL allowance is calculated as follows: the loan amount, multiplied by the probability of default, 
multiplied by the loss in the event of default. For assets related to Stage 1, this calculation is based on the 
next 12 months, and for assets related to Stage 2, based on the expected life of the asset. 

In general, expected credit losses are equal to the product of the following credit risk parameters: debt at 
the time of default, probability of default and losses in case of default. 
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17 Financial risk management (Continued) 

The key principles of calculating the credit risk parameters. EAD represents the expected exposure 
in the event of a default. The Company derives the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty 
and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the contract and arising from amortization.  

Two types of PDs are used for calculating ECLs: 12-month and lifetime PD. These parameters are 
generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical data. They are adjusted 
to reflect forward-looking information as described below. 

For factoring receivables PD indicators are calculated basing on the Company’s assessment of debtor’s 
credit risk. This assessment is based on externally and internally compiled data comprising both 
quantitative and qualitative factors. When it is available Company uses credit ratings from rating agencies 
to derive the PD for corporate customers.  

In 2019 the Company changed the approach in determining PD for other loans issued. Starting from 
1 January 2019 PD indicators are calculated basing on the historical data on actual default rates in the 
Company during the accounting period. For such a period the Company uses the interval of 12 months. 
The annual interval is chosen in accordance with the average credit cycle which counts not more than 12 
months for all the loans issued portfolios except for secured loans. In 2018 the Company used external 
statistics for determining PD due to the lack of the internal historical data. The effect of methodology 
change is RUB 12 573 thousand of additional ECL allowance charge. 

Due to the lack of internal historical data LGD is determined based on the rating agencies’ studies and 
comprises 62% in 2019 according to the Moody’s recovery studies. 

For loans secured by real estate (secured loans portfolio) LTV ratios are a key parameter in determining 
LGD, which is calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest rate as the 
discounting factor. In 2018 the Company incorporated negative scenarios by using a 10% cap for minimal 
LGD level for secured loans.  

In 2019 the Company revised negative scenario by decreasing its probability to 3% and limiting losses to 
LGD for unsecured losses. Changes in the above assumptions resulted in a decrease of ECL allowance 
by RUB 4 254 thousand. 

At 31 December 2019, net carrying amount of credit-impaired loans secured by real estate amounted to 
RUB 65 187 thousand (31 December 2018: RUB 47 189 thousand) and the value of identifiable collateral, 
which is mainly commercial properties, held against those loans amounted to RUB 65 187 thousand 
(31 December 2018: 47 189 thousand RUB). For each loan, the value of disclosed collateral is capped to 
the nominal amount of the loan that is held against. 

The following table stratifies credit exposures from credit-impaired loans secured by real estate by ranges 
of loan-to-value (LTV) ratio. LTV is calculated as the ratio of the gross carrying amount of the loan to the 
value of the collateral. The valuation of the collateral excludes any adjustments for obtaining and selling 
the collateral. For credit-impaired loans the value of collateral is based on the most recent appraisals. 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
31 December 

2019 
31 December 

2018 
   
LTV ratio   
Less than 50% 52 100 30 725 
51-70% 9 680 13 860 
> 70% 3 407 2 604 
   
   
Total 65 187 47 189 
   

Requirements for pledged item, registration, and determination of the fair value of various types of 
collateral, its liquidity and monitoring procedure are regulated by internal procedures. At the same time, 
the availability of a loan support formalized in accordance with the established procedure does not replace 
an integrated assessment of the borrower. The fair value of collateral is assessed at least quarterly. 
Monitoring of the pledged property is carried out by the employees of the Department of Expertise and 
Decision-making and Department of Secured loans. 

For purpose of further reduction of risks the collateral in the form of property is required to be insured. 
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17 Financial risk management (Continued) 

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models. The Company incorporates forward-
looking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased 
significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of ECL. The company uses the expert 
judgment to assess predictive analytics. Such an information is based on the external data as well.  

As an indicator assessed as for the significant fluctuations oil prices are used. This choice is brought up 
by the evident correlation of oil prices with corporate loans overdue dynamics in Russia. 

The Company regularly assess the significance of predicted oil prices change. If such a change is 
significant, the Company calculates the coefficient of oil prices change impact on the predictable level of 
customers’ defaults via regression analysis and applies this coefficient to its customers’ PD. In 2019 the 
predicted oil prices change was not significant and has no significant impact on the amount of ECL 
allowance. 

Market risk. Market risk is the risk that the Company will incur losses in connection with transactions with 
balance sheet and off-balance sheet instruments due to unfavourable changes in market factors, 
including: interest rates (interest rate risk), exchange rates (currency risk), prices of stock market 
instruments and stock indices (stock risk), credit spreads of issuers (special interest rate risk), prices of 
precious metals and goods (commodity risk) or adverse changes in the expected volatility of market factors 
(risk of changes in volatility). 

The Company’s Management also manages interest rate and market risks by matching the Company’s 
interest rate position, which provides the Company with a positive interest margin. The Department of 
Financial Control keeps track of the current results of the Company’s financial activities and evaluates the 
Company’s vulnerability to changes in interest rates and the impact on the Company’s profits. The analysis 
of effective interest rates is provided in the table below along with the analysis of financial instruments by 
expected maturity. 

Currency risk. Currency risk is the risk of losses arising from unfavourable changes in the exchange rates 
of foreign currencies and (or) gold on open positions in foreign currencies and (or) gold. 

The Company’s Management manages the currency risk by determining an open foreign currency 
exchange position on the basis of expected devaluation of the RUB and other macroeconomic indicators, 
which allows the Company to minimize losses due to significant fluctuations in the national and foreign 
currency exchange rates. The Finance Department performs daily monitoring of the Company’s open 
currency position with the aim to match the requirements of the CBR. 

The table below summarizes the analysis of currency risk as of the end of the reporting period: 
 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 
In thousands of 
Russian Roubles 

Monetary 
assets 

Monetary 
liabilities Net position 

Monetary 
assets 

Monetary 
liabilities Net position 

       
RUB 3 616 647 1 128 271 2 488 376 3 221 098 1 055 621 2 165 477 
USD 1 1 237 712 (1 237 711) 1 325 276 2 332 677 (1 007 401) 
       
       
Total 3 616 648 2 365 983 1 250 665 4 546 374 3 388 298 1 158 076 
       

The table below shows the change in the financial result as a result of possible changes in exchange rates 
used at the reporting date, provided that all other variables remain unchanged: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles 
31 December 

2019 
31 December 

2018 
   
20% appreciation of USD against RUB (2018: 20%) (198 034) (161 184) 
20% depreciation of USD against RUB (2018: 20%) 198 034 161 184 
   

The exposure was calculated only for monetary balances denominated in currencies other than the 
functional currency. 
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17 Financial risk management (Continued) 

Operational risk. Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from systems failure, human error, fraud, or 
external events. These events may damage the interests or image of the Company, might lead to 
legislative and regulatory consequences, or would lead to financial loss for the Company. The Company 
cannot eliminate all operational risks, but through a control framework and by monitoring and responding 
to potential risks, the Company is able to manage and monitor the risks. The internal controls provide 
segregation of duties, access rights, approval and reconciliation procedures, personnel training, as well 
as assessment procedures. 

Country risk. The geographical concentration of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019 
is as follows: 

In thousands of Russian Roubles Russia EU Non-EU Total 
     
Financial assets     
Cash and cash equivalents 589 807 - - 589 807 
Factoring receivables 519 289 - - 519 289 
Loans issued 2 497 171 - - 2 497 171 
Financial accounts receivable 10 381 - - 10 381 
     
     
Total financial assets 3 616 648 - - 3 616 648 
     
     
Financial liabilities     
Loans and borrowings 685 525 1 587 095 44 340 2 316 960 
Accounts payable 43 864 5 159 - 49 023 
     
     
Total financial liabilities 729 389 1 592 254 44 340 2 365 983 
     
     
Net position in financial instruments 2 887 259 (1 592 254) (44 340) 1 250 665 
     

The geographical concentration of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 is as follows: 
In thousands of Russian Roubles Russia EU Non-EU Total 
     
Financial assets     
Cash and cash equivalents 1 658 424 - - 1 658 424 
Deposits 77 113 - - 77 113 
Factoring receivables 1 409 330 - - 1 409 330 
Loans issued 1 472 002 - - 1 472 002 
Financial accounts receivable 6 618 - - 6 618 
     
     
Total financial assets 4 623 487 - - 4 623 487 
     
     
Financial liabilities     
Loans and borrowings 673 026 2 651 958 42 240 3 367 224 
Accounts payable 21 074 - - 21 074 
     
     
Total financial liabilities 694 100 2 651 958 42 240 3 388 298 
     
     
Net position in financial instruments 3 929 387 (2 651 958) (42 240) 1 235 189 
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17 Financial risk management (Continued) 

Liquidity risk. Liquidity risk is the risk of losses due to the inability to finance its activities, that is, to ensure 
the growth of assets and fulfil liabilities ensuing of the period of performance. Liquidity risk arises as a 
result of a mismatch between maturities of Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities. 

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Company performs daily verification of the expected future receipts 
from operations with customers and banking operations, which is part of the asset and liability 
management process. The management sets limits in respect of the minimum proportion of funds due for 
payment necessary for repayment of deposits and in respect of the minimum level of funds to provide 
interbank and other loans that are necessary to compensate the repayment of deposit in an unforeseen 
amount. 

The tables below show the distribution of undiscounted contractual cash flows (including future interest 
payments) over the Company's liabilities according to the remaining contractual maturities. 

Analysis of undiscounted cash flows for the Company's liabilities at 31 December 2019 is as follows: 

In thousands of 
Russian Roubles 

Less 
than 1 
year 

1 to 2 
years 

2 to 3 
years 

3 to 4 
years 

4 to 5 
years 

5 or 
more 
years Overdue Total 

Carrying 
amount 

          
Financial liabilities          
Loans and borrowings - 183 600 1 868 415 30 984 544 824 - - 2 627 823 2 316 960 
          

Analysis of undiscounted cash flows for the Company's liabilities at 31 December 2018 is as follows: 

In thousands of 
Russian Roubles 

Less 
than 1 
year 

1 to 2 
years 

2 to 3 
years 

3 to 4 
years 

4 to 5 
years 

5 or 
more 
years Overdue Total 

Carrying 
amount 

          
Financial liabilities          
Loans and borrowings 958 339 191 319 191 319 1 210 519 96 019 1 573 235 - 4 220 750 3 367 224 
          

The table below shows an analysis of financial instruments by expected maturity and interest-rate risk as 
at 31 December 2019: 

In thousands of 
Russian Roubles EIR 

Less 
than 1 
year 

1 to 2 
years 

2 to 3 
years 

3 to 4 
years 

4 to 5 
years 

5 or 
more 
years Overdue Total 

          
Financial assets          
Cash and cash 
equivalents  589 807 - - - - - - 589 807 
Factoring receivables 20.2% 516 910 - - - - - 2 379 519 289 
Loans issued 27,8% 1 337 336 158 482 132 317 44 936 46 554 739 242 38 304 2 497 171 
Financial accounts 
receivable  10 381 - - - - - - 10 381 
          
          
Total financial assets  2 454 434 158 482 132 317 44 936 46 554 739 242 40 683 3 616 648 
          
          
Financial liabilities          
Loans and borrowings 10.0% 44 340 - 1 741 637 - 530 983 - - 2 316 960 
Accounts payable  49 023 - - - - - - 49 023 
          
          
Total financial 
liabilities  93 363 - 1 741 637 - 530 983 - - 2 365 983 
          
          
Liquidity gap arising 
from financial 
instruments  2 361 071 158 482 (1 609 320) 44 936 (484 429) 739 242 40 683 1 250 665 
          
          
Liquidity gap arising 
from financial 
instruments, 
cumulatively  2 361 071 2 519 553 910 233 955 169 470 740 1 209 982 1 250 665  
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17 Financial risk management (Continued) 

The table below shows an analysis of financial instruments by expected maturity and interest-rate risk as 
at 31 December 2018: 

In thousands of 
Russian Roubles EIR 

Less 
than 1 
year 

1 to 2 
years 

2 to 3 
years 

3 to 4 
years 

4 to 5 
years 

5 or 
more 
years Overdue Total 

          
Financial assets          
Cash and cash 
equivalents  1 658 424 - - - - - - 1 658 424 
Deposits  77 113 - - - - - - 77 113 
Factoring receivables 18.2% 1 409 330  - - - - - - 1 409 330 
Loans issued 24.1% 897 452 18 365 44 441 34 856 54 828 318 008 104 052 1 472 002 
Financial accounts 
receivable  6 618 - - - - - - 6 618 
          
          
Total financial assets  4 048 937 18 365 44 441 34 856 54 828 318 008 104 052 4 623 487 
          
          
Financial liabilities          
Loans and borrowings 7.5% 715 266 - - 1 120 419 - 1 531 539 - 3 367 224 
Accounts payable  21 074 - - - - - - 21 074 
          
          
Total financial 
liabilities  736 340 - - 1 120 419 - 1 531 539 - 3 388 298 
          
          
Liquidity gap arising 
from financial 
instruments  3 312 597 18 365 44 441 (1 085 563) 54 828 (1 213 531) 104 052 1 235 189 
          
          
Liquidity gap arising 
from financial 
instruments, 
cumulatively  3 312 597 3 330 962 3 375 403 2 289 840 2 344 668 1 131 137 1 235 189  
          

Interest rate sensitivity analysis estimates the impact of possible fluctuations in currencies and interest 
rates during the year. The long-term sensitivity analysis complements evaluation results of potential 
financial losses and helps assessing risk across the Company. The sensitivity to changes in the market 
interest rates is limited as assets and liabilities of the Company represented mainly by financial 
instruments with fixed rates. 

18 Contingencies 

Insurance. The insurance industry in the Russian Federation is in a developing state and many forms of 
insurance protection common in other parts of the world are not yet generally available. The Company 
does not have full coverage for its premises and equipment, business interruption, or third party liability in 
respect of property or environmental damage arising from accidents on its property or relating to 
operations. Until the Company obtains adequate insurance coverage, there is a risk that the loss or 
destruction of certain assets could have a material adverse effect on operations and financial position. 

Litigations. In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to legal actions and complaints. 
Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints will not have 
a material adverse effect on the financial condition or the results of future operations.  

Taxation contingencies. The taxation system in the Russian Federation continues to evolve and is 
characterized by frequent changes in legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are 
sometimes contradictory and subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes are 
subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities which have the authority to impose severe 
fines, penalties and interest charges. A tax year remains open for review by the tax authorities during the 
three subsequent calendar years; however, under certain circumstances, a tax year may remain open for 
a longer period. Recent events in the Russian Federation suggest that the tax authorities are taking a 
more assertive position in their interpretation and enforcement of tax legislation. 
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18 Contingencies (Continued) 

Starting from 1 January 2012 new transfer pricing rules came into force in Russia. These provide the 
possibility for tax authorities to make transfer pricing adjustments and impose additional tax liabilities in 
respect of controllable transactions if their prices deviate from the market range or profitability range. 
According to the provisions of transfer pricing rules, the taxpayer should sequentially apply five market 
price determination methods prescribed by the Tax Code.  

Tax liabilities arising from transactions between companies are determined using actual transaction 
prices. It is possible, with the evolution of the interpretation of transfer pricing rules in the Russian 
Federation and changes in the approach of the Russian tax authorities, that such transfer prices could be 
challenged. 

Additionally, in 2015 a concept of "actual right to income" was introduced in the Tax Code. The concept 
is aimed at countering unreasonable usage of international agreements on the avoidance of double 
taxation (hereinafter – “Double Taxation Treaty” of “DTT”) when paying passive income (dividends, 
interest, royalties, etc.) to foreign companies. The concept is used to identify transfers of income to the 
companies that are registered in tax-free or low-tax jurisdictions and that do not have concluded DTTs 
with Russia with the use of foreign intermediary companies, domiciled in those countries, that have signed 
DTTs with Russia. As a result, tax authorities may challenge the application of 0% income tax rate for 
interest income that was paid at the source of payment in Russia, if the taxpayer cannot justify why the 
recipient of the income have an actual right to receive it. Since abovementioned transfer pricing rules or 
concept of “actual right to income” became effective relatively recently in Russia, the impact of any such 
challenge cannot be reliably estimated; however, it may be significant to the financial position and/or the 
overall operations of the Company. 

These circumstances may create tax risks in the Russian Federation that are substantially more significant 
than in other countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on 
its interpretations of applicable Russian tax legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions. 
However, the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on the financial position, 
if the authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant. 

19 Fair value of financial instruments 

Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are 
measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, (ii) level two 
measurements are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and (iii) level three measurements are 
valuations not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). Management applies 
judgement in categorising financial instruments using the fair value hierarchy. If a fair value measurement 
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. 
The significance of a valuation input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. 

(a) Recurring fair value measurements 

Recurring fair value measurements are those that the accounting standards require or permit in the 
statement of financial position at the end of each reporting period. There are no financial assets and 
financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018. 

(b) Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed 

The management of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial 
liabilities recognized in the Financial statements approximate their fair values. 

Valuation methods which are relevant to level 3 were used in the determination of fair value of Factoring 
receivables, Loans issued, Financial accounts receivable, Financial accounts payable and Loans and 
borrowings. Valuation methods which are relevant to level 2 were used in the determination of fair value 
of Cash and cash equivalents and Deposits. 

The main assumptions used by management to estimate the fair values of financial instruments are:  

• discount rates from 10.2% to 85.2% for tender loans (2018: from 10.9% to 81.7%), from 14.9% to 
31.5% for secured loans (2018: from 14.9% to 31.5%) and from 7.0% to 48.0% for other loans 
(from 7.0% to 60.0%); 

• discount rates from 5.5% to 8.4% for loans and borrowings in USD (2018: from 5.5% to 8.4%) and 
from 9.0% to 13.3% for loans and borrowings in RUB (2018: from 9.0% to 13.3%). 
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20 Operations with related parties 

Parties are generally considered to be related if the parties are under common control or one party has 
the ability to control the other party or can exercise significant influence over the other party in making 
financial or operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is 
directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form. 

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into transactions with its related parties. These 
transactions include loans issued and received, other payables and receivables and guarantees received. 

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 with the parent company and 
other related parties of the Company are presented below: 

 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 
In thousands of Russian 
Roubles 

Parent 
company 

Other related 
parties Total 

Parent 
company 

Other related 
parties Total 

       
Loans issued - 65 573 65 573 - 904 904 
Accounts receivable - 7 862 7 862 - 1 792 1 792 
Loans and borrowings 1 232 553 1 040 067 2 272 620 2 332 677 992 307 3 324 984 
Accounts payable 5 159 22 005 27 164 - 12 540 12 540 
       

Loans to other related parties are issued in RUB at 7% with maturity at 31 December 2021. 

The income and expense items with related parties in 2019 and 2018 are as follows: 

 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 
In thousands of Russian 
Roubles 

Parent 
company 

Other related 
parties Total 

Parent 
company 

Other related 
parties Total 

       
Interest income 
calculated using the 
effective interest method - 1 819 1 819 - - - 
Selling expenses - (369) (369) - - - 
Administrative expenses - (30 557) (30 557) - (36 800) (36 800) 
Interest expense (147 100) (123 820) (270 920) (112 939) (94 709) (207 648) 
Remuneration to the 
Company’s key 
management personnel - (35 544) (35 544) - (10 222) (10 222) 
Other income - 5 058 5 058 - - - 
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21 Subsequent events – the COVID-19 outbreak 

In first months of 2020, significant adverse events in the global market took place. On 11 March 2020, the 
World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak being pandemic. Responding to the potentially 
serious threat the COVID-19 presents to public health, the Russian government authorities have taken 
measures to contain the outbreak, including imposing restrictions on the cross-borders movement of people, 
entry restrictions for foreign visitors and instructing business community to transfer employees to working 
from home. During March 2020, regional authorities gradually introduced additional measures to enhance 
social distancing, including closing schools, universities, restaurants, cinemas, theatres and museums and 
sport facilities. In order to ensure the sanitary and epidemiological well-being of the population, the President 
of the Russian Federation declared paid non-working days from 30 March to 30 April 2020 for all employees 
except for medical and pharmacy organizations, emergency services, food and essential goods providers 
and continuous operating cycle entities. 

Due to lockdown and business disruption in many countries, global oil demand has drastically decreased 
leading to oversupply and sharp fall in oil prices. On 12 April 2020, major global oil producers including 
Russia agreed to a record cut in crude oil production for stabilizing the oil market, which, however, has not 
been able to reverse the downward pressure on the oil market. Sharp decrease in oil prices and production 
volumes results in corresponding decrease of oil producers’ income and payments to the budget, which is 
likely to have major economic and social consequences and unavoidably affect public sector spending. 

These events will have wider adverse effects on the economy, including: 

• Disruption to business operations and economic activity, with a negative impact on supply chains 
and breach of contracts; 

• Significant disruption to businesses in certain sectors, both operating on domestic market and 
export-oriented businesses with high reliance on foreign markets. Mostly affected sectors include 
retail, travel and tourism, entertainment and hospitality sector, transportation, oil industry, 
construction, automotive, insurance and financial sector; 

• Significant decrease in demand for non-essential goods and services; 

• An increase in economic uncertainty, reflected in more volatile asset prices and currency 
exchange rates. 

In March 2020, the Russian government announced a package of measures to support industries most heavily 
affected by the outbreak of COVID-19. The program includes, among other, deferral of tax and fee payments 
for small and medium-sized businesses, postponement of loans repayment, suspension of lease payments on 
federal and municipal property, state support on loans refinancing and restructuring for businesses in hard-hit 
industries. Besides, social contribution tax rate was lowered for all small and medium-sized businesses. The 
list of heavily affected industries is closely monitored and may be adjusted based on further developments. 

In order to safeguard uninterrupted operating activities and the Company’s liquidity position, management 
has implemented a number of measures, which include: 

• implementation of work from home program for employees; 

• test of financial results and financial position of the Company applying possible decrease in 
demand for the services provided by the Company and possible increase in credit quality; 

• arrangements with counterparties to ensure uninterrupted rendering services. 

The Company operates in a micro-financing sector issuing mostly unsecured short-term loans to small 
and medium sized business, long-term secured loans to individuals and legal entities as well offering 
factoring services. Also the COVID-19 outbreak negatively affected the volume of loans, the Management 
of the Company expects that the activity of these customers will gradually fully recover. 

The Company has not observed subsequent development of credit losses and diligences in the loan portfolio 
subsequent to the reporting date following the COVID-19 outbreak. As at 1 July 2020 loans issued amount 
overdue more than 30 days totals RUB 226 673 thousand (unaudited) compared to RUB 137 716 thousand 
overdue as at 31 December 2019. The increase in overdue loans is mostly attributed to secured loans, 
where the Company holds sufficient collateral. In 2020 the Company significantly decreased factoring 
portfolio as planned and has not observed any new significant credit losses. 
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